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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA
ATLANTA DIVISION

DAVID SIMISTER, on behalf of )
himself and others similarly situated, )
)

Plaintiffs, g COMPLAINT
Ve 3 Case No.
GOBB COUNTY; G, ; Jury Trial Demand

Defendant. )

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, David Simister, on behalf of himself and those similarly situated,
by and through his counsel, Lance J. LoRusso of LoRusso Law Firm, P.C.,
respectfully submits this Complaint against Defendant Cobb County, Georgia, and
states as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
I

Plaintiff is a current employee of Cobb County, Georgia, and he, on his own
behalf and on behalf of those similarly situated, brings this lawsuit as a collective
action in accordance with 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) of the Fair Labor Standards Act

(“FLSA™) against Defendant Cobb County, Georgia, on behalf of himself and all
1
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those similarly situated because of Defendant’s unlawful deprivation of Plaintiff’s
rights to overtime compensation. Plaintiff and those similarly situated seek a
declaratory judgment under 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202 and compensation,
damages, equitable and other relief available under the FLSA, as amended, 29
U.S.C. §201, et seq.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
2

Jurisdiction over this action is conferred upon this Court by 28 U.S.C. §
1331 and 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

3.

Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391, as Defendant is
located within the Northern District of Georgia and a substantial portion of the
events and omissions giving rise to this claim occurred within the Northern District
of Georgia.

PARTIES
4.

Plaintiff David Simister and those similarly situated are each employees or

former employees of Defendant Cobb County, Georgia, in the position of “Fire

Captain” at the Cobb County Fire Department (“CCFD”’) and some were

o
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previously employed by Defendant in the Cobb County Senior Services (“Senior
Services”) and Cobb County Elections and Voter Registration (“Elections™)
departments.

:

Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §§ 216(b) and 256, the named Plaintiff has executed
and hereby files with the Court his consent in writing to become a party Plaintiff in
this action, which is appended hereto as Exhibit A. Should other individuals
similarly situated seek to join this action, their consents will be filed with the
Court. Written consent forms set forth each Plaintiff’s name and intent to be party
to this suit.

6.

Defendant, Cobb County, Georgia, is a county existing under the laws of the
State of Georgia, over which this Court has jurisdiction, and has a principal place
of business in Cobb County, Georgia, within the Northern District of Georgia.
Cobb County operates the Cobb County Fire Department (CCFD), Cobb County
Senior Services (“Senior Services”), and the Cobb County Elections and Voter

Registration (“Elections’) departments.
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FACTS
7.

At all times material, Plaintiff and those similarly situated have worked for
Defendant at CCFD in the position of “Fire Captain” and previously worked for
Defendant in separate positions for Senior Services and/or Elections.

8.

Plaintiff and those similarly situated, while employed by Defendant, have

been a “employees” within the meaning of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(e)(1).
9.

Defendant is an “employer” as defined by 29 U.S.C. § 203(d) and a “public
agency” within 29 U.S.C. § 203(x). Upon information and belief, Defendant at all
relevant times has been aware of the provisions of the FLSA.

10.

As a Fire Captain working on behalf of the Defendant, Plaintiff and those
similarly situated had and continue to have the primary job duty to protect and
serve the public by engaging in fire suppression, emergency response, and related
activities. Fire Captains are required to respond with their crew to all fire calls

and/or emergency calls assigned to their particular fire station.
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I1.

While on the scene of fire calls, Plaintiff and those similarly situated work
alongside the crew, engage in the control, suppression, and extinguishing of fires,
and participate in the rescue of fire or accident victims. Plaintiff and those
similarly situated are also required to participate in the same physical fitness
program and complete all required training as the other members of the crew on
which they serve. Thus, Plaintiff and those similarly situated are non-exempt
employees covered by the overtime provisions of the FLSA.

12.

Within the last three years, and continuing to date, while working in the
position of Fire Captain, Plaintiff and those similarly situated have been assigned
to work shifts by Defendant following the repeating pattern of 24 hours on-duty,
then 48 hours off-duty. This cycle repeats every three days, and as a result,
Plaintiff and those similarly situated routinely work more than 40 hours in a
workweek, and in fact at least 168 hours every 21 days.

13.

Yet, despite causing Plaintiff to suffer work and permitting Plaintiff and

those similarly situated to work in excess of the statutory maximums of 40 hours in

a workweek and 159 hours in each 21-day cycle, Defendant at all material times
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and ongoing, has failed to pay Plaintiff and those similarly situated at the required
rate of one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for those hours.
14.

Defendant’s actions in refusing to provide Plaintiff and those similarly
situated the rights and protections provided under the FLSA are willful in that
Defendant knew its pay practices with respect to Plaintiff and those similarly
situated were prohibited by the FLSA or, at the very least, showed a reckless
disregard for the FLSA.

15.

Plaintiff and those similarly situated were also employed by Defendant in
separate positions for Senior Services and/or Elections, yet Defendant failed to
properly or fully compensate Plaintiff and those similarly situated for their
overtime hours in so far as Defendant failed to pay them overtime at a blended rate
as required by the FLSA and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

16.

At all times material, Plaintiff’s and those similarly situated non-overtime

rate of pay as Fire Captains and employees for Senior Services and/or elections

was different.
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1%

Defendant failed to properly calculate and compensate Plaintiff’s and those
similarly situated overtime pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”)
during workweeks where Plaintiff performed work for Defendant as a Fire Captain
and work for Defendant at Senior Services and/or Elections.

18.

Defendant failed to use the “weighted average” as required by the FLSA to
determine Plaintiff’s and those similarly situated regular rate of pay for workweeks
where Plaintiff and those similarly situated performed work for Defendant as a Fire
Captain and for Defendant at Senior Services and/or Elections.

19.

Under the “weighted average” method, total earnings (except statutory
exclusions) are computed to include the compensation of Plaintiff’s and those
similarly situated during the workweek from all such rates, and are then divided by
the total number of hours worked at all jobs.

20.

For instance, if Plaintiff and those similarly situated worked 60 hours in a

week with 49 hours as a Fire Captain and 11 hours for Senior Services, the pay

would be 49 hours multiplied by their hourly rate of pay as a Fire Captain for the
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workweek plus 11 hours multiplied by their hourly rate of pay for Senior Services
for the workweek. To compute the regular rate of pay, the sum of the previous
equation is divided by the total hours worked (60). The total amount of overtime
would be based on the combination of hours worked for each separate job instead
of Defendant’s method of computing overtime separately.

21.

Yet, despite suffering and permitting Plaintiff and those similarly situated to
work in excess of the statutory maximums of 40 hours in a workweek and 159
hours in each 21-day cycle, Defendant at all material times and ongoing, has failed
to pay Plaintiff and those similarly situated at the required rate of one and one-half
times his regular rate of pay for those hours.

22,

At all relevant times, Defendant failed to compensate Plaintift at one-and-
one-half times his regular hourly rate for all hours worked in excess of forty-three
hours per workweek in violation of FLSA §7(k), 29 U.S.C. § 207(k).

23.
Instead, Defendant eliminated positions with Elections and Senior Services

for Plaintiff and those similarly situated when Plaintiff and those similarly situated

complained about not being properly compensated for overtime pay. Defendant
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retaliated against Plaintiff and others similarly situated because Defendant was
sued by a previous Fire Captain for failing to pay any overtime wages. Defendant
forced several fire captains to sign settlement agreements.

24.

Defendant’s actions in refusing to provide Plaintiff the rights and protections
provided under the FLSA are willful in that Defendant knew its pay practices with
respect to Plaintiff and those similarly situated was prohibited by the FLSA or, at
the very least, showed a reckless disregard for the FLSA.

25.

In failing and refusing to compensate Plaintiff and those similarly situated
for overtime as required by the FLSA, Defendant did not rely on any letter ruling
or advice obtained from the Department of Labor indicating that Plaintiff was
subject to any exemption from the maximum hour provisions of the FLSA.

26.

Defendant’s actions were retaliatory in terminating the employment of
Plaintiff and those similarly situated employment for Senior Services and Elections
as a result of gaining knowledge of complaints regarding the failure of Defendant

to properly pay overtime as required by the FLSA.
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COUNTI
VIOLATION OF § 207(a) OF THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

27.

Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth above as if each were
explicitly set forth herein.

28.

During the times that Plaintiff and those similarly situated have worked in
excess of 40 hours in a workweek, Defendant has failed to provide the rights and
protections provided under the FLSA, including overtime pay at the rate of one and
one-half times their regular rate of pay for all hours of worked in excess of the
hourly standards set forth under 29 U.S.C. § 207(a).

29.

By failing to pay Plaintiff and those similarly situated the overtime pay
required under the law, Defendant has violated and is continuing to violate the
provisions of the FLSA in a manner that is unreasonable, willful and in bad faith.
As a result, at all times material herein, Plaintiff and those similarly situated are
entitled to seek relief for the maximum period allowed under the law during which
time they have been unlawfully deprived of overtime compensation and other

relief.

10
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30.

As a result of Defendant's willful, unreasonable and bad faith violations of
the FLSA, there has become due and owing to Plaintiff and those similarly situated
an amount that has not yet been precisely determined. The employment and work
records for Plaintiff and those similarly situated (including time and attendance
records) are in the exclusive possession, custody and control of Defendant.
Plaintiff and those similarly situated are unable to state at this time the exact
amount due and owing. Defendant is under a duty imposed under the FLSA, 29
U.S.C. § 211(c), and various other statutory and regulatory provisions to maintain
and preserve payroll and other employment records with respect to Plaintiff and
those similarly situated from which the amount of Defendant's liability can be
ascertained.

31.

Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), Plaintiff and those similarly situated are
entitled to recover liquidated damages in an amount equal to their back pay
damages for Defendant's failure to pay overtime compensation.

32.
Plaintiff and those similarly situated are entitled recover attorneys’ fees and

costs under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

11
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COUNT I
VIOLATION OF § 207(k) OF THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

33,

Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth above as if each were
explicitly set forth herein.

34.

Under the U.S. Department of Labor's regulations applicable to fire fighters
covered under 29 U.S.C. § 207(k), 29 C.F.R. § 553.230 (2020), an employer must
pay overtime compensation to such employees at a rate not less than one and one-
half times their regular rate of pay for hours of work in excess of 53 hours in a 7-
day work period or in excess of 212 hours in a maximum 28-day work period (or
in excess of a proportionate number of hours for work periods between 7 and 28
days, such as 159 hours for a work period of 21 days).

39,

Under the U.S. Department of Labor’s regulations applicable to employees
performing two different types of work for the same employer in a workweek
covered under 29 C.F.R. § 778.115 (2020), where an employee in a single
workweek works at two or more different types of work for which different non-
overtime rates of pay (of not less than the applicable minimum wage) have been

established, his regular rate for that week is the weighted average of such rates.

12
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That is, his total earnings (except statutory exclusions) are computed to include his
compensation during the workweek from all such rates, and are then divided by the
total number of hours worked at all jobs.

36.

When Plaintiff and those similarly situated worked in excess of the 159
hours in a 21-day work period, or otherwise worked beyond the applicable hourly
threshold, Defendant failed to provide the rights and protections provided under
the FLSA, including overtime pay at the rate of one and one-half times their
regular rates of pay for all hours Plaintiff and those similarly situated have worked
in excess of the hourly standards set forth under 29 U.S.C. § 207(k), 29 C.F.R. §
553.230 (2020), and 29 C.F.R. § 778.115 (2020).

37.

By failing to pay Plaintiff and those similarly situated the overtime pay
required under the law, Defendant has violated and is continuing to violate the
provisions of the FLSA in a manner that is unreasonable, willful and in bad faith.
As aresult, at all times material herein, Plaintiff and those similarly situated are
entitled to seek relief for the maximum period allowed under the law during which

time he has been unlawfully deprived of overtime compensation and other relief.

13
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38.

As a result of Defendant's willful, unreasonable and bad faith violations of
the FLSA, there have become due and owing to Plaintiff and those similarly
situated an amount that has not yet been precisely determined. The employment
and work records for Plaintiff and those similarly situated (including time and
attendance records) are in the exclusive possession, custody and control of
Defendant. Plaintiff and those similarly situated are unable to state at this time the
exact amount due and owing to him. Defendant is under a duty imposed under the
FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 211(c), and various other statutory and regulatory provisions to
maintain and preserve payroll and other employment records with respect to
Plaintiff and those similarly situated from which the amount of Defendant's
liability can be ascertained.

39.

None of the exemptions provided by the FLSA regulating the duty of
employers to pay employees for all hours worked and to pay employees at a time-
and-a-half rate for all hours worked in excess of the statutory amount in a given
workweek are applicable to Defendant or Plaintiff and those similarly situated.

40.

Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), Plaintiff and those similarly situated are

14
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entitled to recover liquidated damages in an amount equal to their back pay
damages for Defendant's failure to pay overtime compensation.
COUNT III VIOLATION OF § 215 OF THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT
41.
Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth above as if each were
explicitly set forth herein.
42.
Plaintiff and those similarly situated complained to Defendant regarding its
failure to properly compensate Plaintiff and those similarly situated. Plaintiff and

those similarly situated thus engaged in a protected activity.

43.

Plaintiff and those similarly situated were considered “those similarly
situated” in a lawsuit for overtime wages for “Fire Captains” employed by
Defendant. Plaintiff and those similarly situated thus engaged in a protected
activity.

44,
Defendant took a materially adverse action by terminating Plaintiff and

those similarly situated from their positions at Cobb County Senior Services and

15
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Cobb County Elections following complaints and the settlement of the lawsuit.
45,

These adverse actions were causally connected to the protected activity as
occurred as a result of the involvement of Plaintiff and those similarly situated in
complaints and a lawsuit for overtime compensation.

COUNT IV ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS UNDER THE FLSA
46.

Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth above as if each were
explicitly set forth herein.

47.

Plaintiff and those similarly situated are entitled to recover attorneys’ fees
and costs under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and applicable
law, Plaintiff hereby demands that these claims be tried before a jury.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff and those similarly situated pray that this Court:
(a) Designate this action as a collective action on behalf of Plaintiffs

and those similarly situated, and issue notice pursuant to 29

16
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U.S.C. § 216(b) to all similarly situated members of the potential
collective class apprising them of the pendency of this action, and
permitting them to assert timely FLSA claims in this action by
filing individual consent forms pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b);

(b) Enter judgment declaring that Defendant has willfully and
wrongfully violated its statutory obligations under federal law,
and deprived Plaintiff and those similarly situated of their rights;

(c) Order a complete and accurate accounting of all the compensation
to which Plaintiff and those similarly situated are entitled;

(d) Award Plaintiff and those similarly situated compensatory relief
in the form of liquidated damages equal to their unpaid
compensation;

(e) Award Plaintiff and those similarly situated interest on their
unpaid compensation;

(f) Award Plaintiff and those similarly situated lost wages for
Defendant’s retaliatory actions of terminating their positions at
Cobb County Senior Services and Cobb County Elections;

(g) Order Defendant to reinstate Plaintiff and those similarly situated

17
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to their positions at Cobb County Senior Services and Cobb
County Elections;
(h) Award Plaintiff his reasonable attorneys' fees to be paid by
Defendant, and the costs and disbursements of this action; and
(1) Grant such other relief as may be just and proper.
Respectfully submitted this @”\day of August, 2020.
LORUSSO LAW FIRM, P.C.
/s/Lance J. LoRusso

Lance J. LoRusso
Georgia Bar No. 458023

LORUSSO LAW FIRM, P.C.
1827 Powers Ferry Road, SE
Building 8, Suite 200
Atlanta, GA 30339
lance@lorussolawfirm.com
Counsel for Plaintiffs

Fax: (770) 644-2379

Phone: (770) 644-2378

This Document Appears in Times New Roman 14 Point Font
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EXHIBIT “A°
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Consent to Become a Plaintiff
In a Wage and Hour Overtime Lawsuit

[ hereby consent to be a party plaintiff in a lawsuit under the Fair Labor Standards Act
concerning my employment with Cobb County to recover unpaid overtime compensation and

other relief.

el .
Pavip &. S M(sTER
Print Name Clearly

r
‘ P,
¥

ARy el

Signature
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